

AN MANAGED FACILITY

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS Low Voltage Wiring Service

Table of Contents

1	GEN	IERAL INFORMATION4
	1.1	Introduction4
	1.2	Schedule4
2	PRE	-SUBMISSION PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS5
	2.1	Examination of Proposal Documents5
	2.2	Pre-Proposal Conference5
	2.3	Addenda5
3	SUB	MITTAL PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS5
	3.1	Compliance with the RFP5
	3.2	Proposer Affiliations and Subcontractors5
	3.3	Proposals6
	3.4	Submission of Proposals Deadline
	3.5	Term of Proposal6
	3.6	Withdrawal of Proposals6
	3.7	Ownership and Non-Confidentiality of Proposals6
	3.8	Effect of Submission
	3.9	Term
	3.10	Confidentiality
	3.11	Delivery Responsibilities
	3.12	Interpretation
	3.13	Anti-Collusion
4	MIN	IIMUM CRITERIA FOR THE PROPOSER8
	4.1	Minimum Required Qualifications8
	4.2	Anti-Discrimination Compliance8
	4.3	Other Compliance9
5	PRC	POSAL EVALUATION AND AWARD OF CONTRACT10
	5.1	Evaluation Criteria
	5.2	Evaluation Process
	5.3	Rights and Options of ASM GLOBAL11
	5.4	Request for Additional Information11
	5.5	Acceptance or Rejection of Proposals
	5.6	Contract Award11
6	MIS	CELLANEOUS

6.1	Penalty for Non-Compliance	12
6.2	Handling of Proposals	12
6.3	Cost Liability	12
6.4	Additional Clarification of Proposals	12
6.5	Compliance with Laws, Rules, Etc	12
6.6	Taxes	12
7 GEI	NERAL REQUIREMENTS	13
7.1	GENERAL	13
7.2	INSURANCE	13
7.3	INDEMNIFICATION	14
7.4	LABOR	14
7.5	LICENSES AND LAWS	14
8 SCC	OPE OF WORK	15
8.1	On-Site Maintenance and Show Support	15
8.2	Capital Project Support	
8.3	Technical Oversight / Owner's Representation	
8.4	Emergency and After-Hours Response	
8.5	Personnel Requirements	
8.6	Quality Assurance	
8.7	Site Requirements	
8.8	Warranty and Service Commitment	
8.9	Exclusions	
8.10	Compensation Structure	
8.11	Proposal Requirements	
8.12	Service Level Expectations and Performance Metrics	
8.12	·	
8.12	·	
8.12	·	
8.12	•	
8.12	2.5 Reporting and Communication	17
8 12	2.6 Corrective Action	17

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Introduction

- a) The Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority ("PCCA" or "the Authority") is the entity responsible for the Pennsylvania Convention Center ("Center"). PCCA is a body corporate and politic, created and existing as an agency and public instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Pursuant to that certain Management Agreement between Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority and ASM GLOBAL dated as of November 1, 2013, ASM GLOBAL is designated as the Manager of the Pennsylvania Convention Center. The Pennsylvania Convention Center is located in Philadelphia on a site bounded by 11th, Broad, Arch and Race Streets plus the former train-shed north of Market Street and East of 12th Street. The Center consists of approximately 2.2 million square feet including: Exhibit halls totaling 679,000 square feet of exhibit space, 2 Ballrooms (32,000 square feet and 55,400 square feet), 79 Meeting Rooms, a 34,960 Square foot Grand Hall and a 23,400 Square foot Atrium.
- b) The purpose of this Request for Proposal ("RFP"), including all exhibits, schedules, addenda, drawings, plans and specifications related hereto issued by ASM GLOBAL on behalf of the Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority, is to solicit proposals from qualified service provider to provide a Low Voltage Wiring RFP Service at the Center as described in this RFP.
- c) The successful Proposer must demonstrate its capability to adequately meet the requirements of this RFP. This RFP contains information and requirements for the Proposer to prepare and submit proposals for a Low Voltage Wiring RFP Service. This RFP, with any addenda, contains the only instructions governing the proposals and material to be included therein. The Proposer must be in a position to commence the provisioning of services at the Center upon execution of a services contract. Proposals, including all documents, (hereinafter "Proposal" or "Proposal Documents") submitted by each Proposer, should be inclusive of all services and/or equipment required, plus any additional related services and/or equipment the Proposer believes are required to ensure efficient, flexible and cost-effective delivery of services. The outline of services set forth in **Exhibit A** hereof is an outline of the scope of work required. Any change in the cost by reason of any alternative or additional services must be separately identified to the extent feasible.

1.2 Schedule

The following is the anticipated schedule in connection with this RFP. This schedule may be altered at the discretion of ASM GLOBAL or the PCCA.

RFP Posted 6/18/2025

Mandatory Pre-Proposal Conference 6/26/2025 at 10:00 a.m. (Virtual)
Site Tours (Upon request) 7/7/2025 (reserve times at conference)

 Question Cut-off Date
 7/18/2025 at 4:00 p.m.

 Proposals Due
 7/29/2025 by 4:00 p.m.

Projected Contract Commencement 11/1/2025

2 PRE-SUBMISSION PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS

2.1 Examination of Proposal Documents

- a) Upon receipt of the Proposal Documents, each Proposer shall examine same for missing or partially blank pages due to mechanical printing or collating errors. It shall be the Proposer's responsibility to identify and procure any missing pages from ASM GLOBAL.
- b) Each Proposer shall carefully review the Proposal Documents and thoroughly familiarize itself with the requirements prior to submitting a Proposal. Prospective Proposers are invited to submit written or electronic inquiries (return receipt requested) with respect to this RFP to Michael Taylor, Purchasing Manager, Pennsylvania Convention Center, 1101 Arch Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107 or mtaylor@paconvention.com. Answers will be posted on the Center's website, https://paconvention.cobblestone.software/gateway/. Telephone inquiries will not be accepted. All questions from Proposers must be submitted in writing to Michael Taylor, Purchasing Manager, as indicated above.

2.2 Pre-Proposal Conference

A <u>Mandatory Pre-Proposal Virtual</u> Conference will be held on 6/26/2025, at 10AM. Please register for the virtual meeting by providing contact information and e-mail addresses for attendees to Michael Taylor, <u>Mtaylor@paconvention.com</u> by end of business on 6/24/2025. A Link to the virtual meeting will be provided with the posted RFP documentation at https://paconvention.cobblestone.software/gateway/. On 7/7/2025, tours of the Convention Center will be conducted if needed.

2.3 Addenda

Changes, corrections or additions may be made in the Proposal Documents after they have been issued. In such case, a written addendum or addenda ("Addendum" or "Addenda") describing the change(s), correction(s) or addition(s) will be posted on the project website. Such Addendum or Addenda shall become part of the Proposal Documents. Each Proposer shall acknowledge receipt of all Addenda in its Proposal. No oral communications, rulings or interpretations will be held binding upon ASM GLOBAL or the PCCA.

3 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS

3.1 Compliance with the RFP

- a) Each Proposer is required to submit a complete written Proposal and to attest to the accuracy and completeness of its Proposal. In all respects, the Proposers shall comply with the instructions and the stipulations of this RFP in the preparation and submission of Proposals. Proposals must be signed by a duly authorized person, partner or officer of the Proposer, as applicable, and evidence of such authorization must be included with the Proposal. The Proposer's legal name and form of entity must be fully stated.
- b) Where permitted by this RFP, the Proposer must specifically identify and fully explain in the Proposal any exceptions to or deviations from the requirements of this RFP.
- c) Failure to comply with the requirements of this RFP may render the Proposal, at the sole discretion of ASM GLOBAL, unresponsive or otherwise unacceptable and may result in disqualification and the elimination of the Proposer from subsequent consideration.

3.2 Proposer Affiliations and Subcontractors.

- a) Each Proposer must disclose in its Proposal any relationship between the Proposer and any entity that has a contractual relationship with ASM GLOBAL or the PCCA.
- b) Any services proposed by the Proposer that will be performed in whole or in part by outside parties, third-party contractors, affiliates, or subcontractors of the Proposer if permitted by ASM GLOBAL, must be specifically identified in the Proposal and the business relationship between the Proposer and such third parties must be explained in the Proposal. Nothing contained herein or in the Contract shall be construed to impose any obligation on the part of ASM GLOBAL or the PCCA to any outside party, third-party contractor, affiliate, or subcontractor of the Proposer.

3.3 Proposals

- a) Each Proposer is required to submit a complete written Proposal by the specified time herein. Late Proposals will not be considered.
- b) In all respects, the Proposers shall comply with the instructions and the stipulations of this RFP in the preparation and submission of Proposals. Oral or telephone Proposals or unsolicited modifications to Proposals will not be considered.
- c) Proposals must be accompanied by a transmittal letter:
 - (1) The transmittal letter must be on an official business letterhead of the Proposer and signed by a duly authorized person, partner or officer of the Proposer, as applicable, and evidence of such authorization must be included with the Proposal. The Proposer's legal name and form of entity must be fully stated.
 - (2) The transmittal letter must include at a minimum:
 - (a) identification of the person who will serve as the primary contact for ASM GLOBAL with respect to the Proposal, and shall include the person's title, address, telephone and fax numbers, and e-mail addresses.
 - (b) certification that the Proposer is not currently under suspension or disbarment by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any other state or federal government; and
 - (c) acknowledgment of receipt by the Proposer of any RFP Addenda or Amendments as required by Section 2)c)
- d) Proposals must be submitted in three (3) separate electronic copies (either USB thumb drive or CD/DVD) as described in Section d) below.

3.4 Submission of Proposals Deadline

- a) Proposal must be submitted to the following address:
 - (1) Pennsylvania Convention Center
 - (2) Attn: Michael Taylor, Purchasing Manager One Convention Center Place
 - (3) 1101 Arch Street
 - (4) Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107
- b) Proposals must be received at the address in Section d)i) above no later than 4:00 PM (EST) on July 29, 2025. Proposers should allow sufficient delivery time to ensure receipt of their Proposals prior to the date and time fixed for the acceptance of the Proposals. Proposals received after this time may be rejected.
- c) Each Proposer shall identify its Proposal on the outside of the envelope by writing the words: "Proposal For Low Voltage Wiring Service at the Pennsylvania Convention Center."
- d) Each Proposal must be provided in a single package with three components. Each component shall be included in the package on a USB thumb drive with the proper identification of the component. The components are:
 - (1) Technical Portion No cost information may appear in this portion.
 - (2) Anti-Discrimination Response Portion
 - (3) Cost/Price Portion

2)

3.5 Term of Proposal

Proposals shall remain open for acceptance and be irrevocable for a period of one hundred eighty (180) calendar days after the deadline for submission of Proposals specified in Section d)ii) hereof.

3.6 Withdrawal of Proposals

Proposals may only be withdrawn on written request received from Proposers prior to the time fixed herein for submission of Proposals. This will not preclude the submission of another Proposal by such Proposer prior to such deadline.

3.7 Ownership and Non-Confidentiality of Proposals

All Proposals submitted in response to this RFP will become the property of ASM GLOBAL and will not be returned. The contents of all Proposals are a matter of public record.

> Page 6 June 14, 2023

3.8 Effect of Submission

Submission of a Proposal shall constitute an agreement by the Proposer to all the terms incorporated in the Proposal Documents. By submission of a Proposal, the Proposer is representing and warranting that;

- a) the information contained in its Proposal is complete and accurate and that such information shall continue to be complete and accurate at all times, and
- b) the delivery of the products and services specified in this RFP and the Proposal shall in no way obligate ASM GLOBAL or the PCCA to pay any additional costs to the Proposer for the provision of such products and services, other than as included in the executed Contract.

3)

3.9 Term

The PCCA desires to enter into a three (3) year contract with the option for a one (1) year renewal term.

3.10 Confidentiality

All data contained in the documents and/or files supplied by ASM GLOBAL and the PCCA during the RFP process or after the execution of the Contract to be awarded pursuant hereto are to be considered confidential and shall be solely for the use of the requesting Proposer. The Proposer will be required to use reasonable care to protect the confidentiality of any data.

3.11 Delivery Responsibilities

The designated Proposer will be required to assume sole responsibility for the delivery of services. The Proposer may not assign or subcontract any of its responsibilities under the Proposal or the Contract except to the extent specifically provided herein or in the Contract.

3.12 Interpretation

Should any question arise as to the proper interpretation of the terms and conditions of the Proposal Documents, the decision of ASM GLOBAL and the PCCA shall be final.

- a) Unless a contrary meaning is specifically noted elsewhere, the words "as required," "as directed," "as permitted" and similar words used in the RFP mean that requirements, directions of and permission of the ASM GLOBAL and the Authority are intended; similarly, the words "approved," "acceptable," "satisfactory" or words of like import mean "approved by," "acceptable to" or "satisfactory to" ASM GLOBAL and the Authority. Words "necessary," "proper" or words of like import as used with respect to extent, conduct or character of services specified shall mean that the services must be conducted in a manner or be of character which is "necessary" or "proper" in the option of ASM GLOBAL and the Authority.
- b) Unless a contrary meaning is specifically noted elsewhere, the words "approved," "reasonable," "suitable," "acceptable," "properly," "satisfactory" or words of like effect and import used in the RFP mean reasonable, suitable, acceptable, proper or satisfactory in the judgment of ASM GLOBAL and the Authority.
- c) Responsiveness is determined by ASM GLOBAL and the Authority and relates to compliance with the provisions of the solicitation, including specifications, and contractual terms and conditions. Absolute or precise conformity is not required. The rule is that conformity in material respects, that is, substantial compliance suffices.
- d) Responsibility is determined by ASM GLOBAL and the Authority and relates primarily to the ability of a Proposer to successfully carry out a proposed contract, and whether it has the character, reputation, and integrity to receive an award. Other considerations bearing on a determination of responsibility can include experience, past performance, business and financial capabilities, skills, technical organization and reliability. Some of the mechanisms available to measure a Proposer's responsibility are the utilization of reference checks, and vendor performance on previous contracts.

3.13 Anti-Collusion

The Proposer, by signing its Proposal, does warrant and represent that its Proposal has not been solicited, secured or prepared directly or indirectly, in a manner contrary to the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and that

said laws have not been violated as they relate to the procurement or performance of the Contract to be awarded pursuant to the process described in this RFP by any conduct, including the payment or giving of any fee, commission, compensation, gift, gratuity, or consideration of any kind, directly or indirectly to any ASM GLOBAL or PCCA employee, officer, or consultant.

4 MINIMUM CRITERIA FOR THE PROPOSER

4.1 Minimum Required Qualifications

- a) Financial Requirements. Each Proposer must supply in its Proposal documented proof of its financial condition and financial responsibility to provide the Rodent, Insect and Pest Control Services to the Pennsylvania Convention Center. This includes providing financial statements certified by a public accountant or annual reports covering the two (2) most recent fiscal years, or other such documents that will allow ASM GLOBAL to assess the financial viability of the Proposer. ASM GLOBAL, at its discretion, may request the Proposer to provide such additional financial information as ASM GLOBAL, in its discretion, deems necessary to establish the financial responsibility of the Proposer.
- b) Insurance Requirements. The proposer must provide and maintain during the term of any contract with ASM GLOBAL or the PCCA, appropriate insurance coverages in the limits required by ASM GLOBAL and the PCCA and in accordance with the law. The requisite insurance coverages include at a minimum, workers compensation insurance, general liability insurance, automobile liability insurance and excess liability insurance.
- c) Licensing Requirements. Proposer must be legally licensed to operate under all applicable laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the City of Philadelphia. Proposers which are corporations, or that are individuals or firms doing business under fictitious names, must supply, in their Proposals, documented proof that they have registered with and obtained a certificate from the Secretary of the Commonwealth authorizing them to do business in this Commonwealth and confirming that they are in good standing. Proposers must also supply in the Proposals, documented proof that they have obtained from the City of Philadelphia the appropriate license(s) for conducting business in Philadelphia. If the foregoing proof is not available at the time of submission of the Proposals, the Proposer must, at a minimum, provide evidence that it has applied for such certificates and license(s) and, at the option of ASM GLOBAL, will be required to produce such certificates and licenses prior to execution of the Contract.
- d) References/Credentials. Each Proposer shall provide ASM GLOBAL with a minimum of three (3) written references from current or prior customers of the Proposer.

4.2 Anti-Discrimination Compliance

- a) Anti-Discrimination Policy. The Pennsylvania Convention Center has instituted an anti-discrimination policy to prevent discrimination against minorities and females in all subcontracting and employment opportunities and to ensure that minorities and females have an equal opportunity to participate in all contracts let for the operation, and maintenance of the Convention Center. A copy of the Anti-Discrimination Policy is attached as Exhibit AA on our website, https://www.paconvention.com/about/purchasing-bids-rfps.
- b) Anti-Discrimination Implementation Plan. All Proposers are required to make their best efforts to achieve minority and female participation in subcontracting and employment opportunities at substantial and meaningful levels. Each Proposer must submit an anti-discrimination plan specific to the delivery of services described in this RFP. The successful Proposer's anti-discrimination implementation plan will become an enforceable provision of the Contract. If the Proposer fails to detail its best efforts as required under this Section, the Proposal may be deemed non-responsive and may be rejected. Please follow the directions in connection with completing the Anti-Discrimination Implementation Plan:
 - (1) Proposers must provide a detailed Anti-Discrimination Implementation Plan specific to this RFP. Proposers' Anti-Discrimination Implementation Plans must include levels of minority and female-owned business participation in;
 - (a) Subcontracting
 - (b) workforce utilization.
 - (2) The Anti-Discrimination Implementation Plan must briefly describe the specific task assigned to each minority and/or female-owned business listed on the Solicitation for Participation Form, attached as

Exhibit BB on our website, https://www.paconvention.com/about/purchasing-bids-rfps. Workforce utilization must indicate the employees who are minorities and/or females who will be assigned to this project and indicate their status by category, i.e., management, hourly, full-time, part-time etc. Proposers' workforce utilization can be in a narrative format. If there are any special business arrangements, i.e., teaming, joint-venture and/or in association with relationships, then an explanation of that particular arrangement must be included with the Anti-Discrimination Implementation Plan for ASM GLOBAL review and approval. The document must indicate all roles and responsibilities of all the participants to the business relationship.

- (3) Solicitation for Participation Form. Proposers must complete the Solicitation & Commitment Form. Please complete all areas that apply to the Proposer's submission. In the event that a firm(s) has more than one certification designation (Minority and Women Business Enterprise), one must be selected for purpose of measuring the levels of actual participation. In order to satisfactorily complete the Solicitation & Commitment Form, the following areas must be indicated; the type of work to be performed; date of solicitation or commitment; whether or not a commitment is made, ("yes" or "no"). If "yes", indicate the amount in dollars and the percentage. If "no" commitment is made, please provide an explanation. Provide copies of all certifications of all firms listed on the Solicitation & Commitment Form.
- (4) Best Efforts. Proposers must demonstrate, in writing, that it took reasonable steps to obtain representation of minority and female-owned businesses and/or vendors to assure equal opportunity, even if the efforts were ultimately unsuccessful. Proposers must provide evidence (a written description with supporting documentation) that it utilized its best efforts to include minority and female-owned business participation in every phase of this RFP. Evidence of "best efforts" are the following:
 - (a) Providing copies of advertising in general media, trade association publications, and minority-focused media concerning subcontracting opportunities.
 - (b) Participating in conferences and seminars specifically for the promotion of the anti-discrimination portion of the project.
 - (c) The timely notification of minority and female-owned business enterprises and solicitation of their participation on this project.
 - (d) Providing sufficient information about plans, specifications and requirements of the project to interested minority and female-owned businesses.
 - (e) Providing evidence of reasonable efforts to negotiate with minority and female-owned businesses to provide specific services and/or goods and supplies.
- (5) Proposers must comply with the aforementioned Anti-Discrimination requirements in order for their Proposals to be considered and/or deemed accepted "best efforts." The Best Faith and Good Efforts Form is attached as <u>Exhibit CC</u> on our website, <u>https://www.paconvention.com/about/purchasing-bids-rfps.</u>

4.3 Other Compliance

- a) The Pennsylvania Convention Center is a public facility created by the Commonwealth to benefit the general public by promoting business, industry, commerce and tourism within the City of Philadelphia and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. It is critically important that all individuals working at the Pennsylvania Convention Center conduct themselves in accordance with the highest standards at all times.
- b) The Convention Center has established a comprehensive Code of Conduct, attached as **Exhibit DD** on our website, https://www.paconvention.com/about/purchasing-bids-rfps, that applies to all individuals working on the premises, including employees of contractors, subcontractors, vendors, exhibitors, and show management. This Code outlines strict rules and guidelines regarding identification, access, solicitation, alcohol and drug use, theft, smoking, dress code, and general conduct. Vendors are expected to fully comply with this Code of Conduct while working at the facility.
- c) Additionally, the Convention Center maintains a Drug-Free Workplace Policy, attached as <u>Exhibit EE</u> on our website, <u>https://www.paconvention.com/about/purchasing-bids-rfps</u>, that prohibits the sale, possession, use or being under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol by workers during their time on the premises. All vendors are subject to drug and alcohol testing in accordance with this policy.

d) Vendors must also complete a Contractor Compliance Form, attached as **Exhibit FF** on our website, https://www.paconvention.com/about/purchasing-bids-rfps, and a Sustainability Commitment Form and Guidelines, attached as **Exhibit GG** on our website, https://www.paconvention.com/about/purchasing-bids-rfps, to ensure adherence to the Convention Center's sustainability initiatives and operational procedures.

5 PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND AWARD OF CONTRACT

5.1 Evaluation Criteria.

- a) ASM GLOBAL, in its sole discretion, will use a variety of criteria, including, without limitation, the following criteria, which are not necessarily listed in order of importance, to evaluate the Proposals received:
 - (1) General feasibility, effectiveness, and clarity of the Proposal and its responsiveness to the RFP requirements.
 - (2) Proposer's demonstrated experience in delivering the required services.
 - (3) Proposer's organizational resources, depth of resources, and financial stability and capability.
 - (4) Creative or innovative and cost-effective approach to service delivery, pricing, and compensation.
 - (5) Initial pricing, pricing for each year of the term of the contract, and overall economic advantages.
 - (6) Evidence of Proposer's service reliability, customer support, and on-time delivery of services.
 - (7) Proposer's compliance with the PCCA's Anti-Discrimination Policy.
 - (8) Implementation capabilities.
- b) ASM GLOBAL may, in its sole discretion, after full and careful consideration, accept the Proposal which best meets the requirements. ASM GLOBAL is not required to make its selection based solely upon the lowest proposed pricing schedule.

5.2 Evaluation Process.

Upon receipt of the Proposals, ASM GLOBAL may short-list the Proposers based on evaluation criteria including, but not limited to, that cited in Section 5.1 of this RFP. ASM GLOBAL reserves the right to then interview each of the short-listed Proposers and may require presentations to be made by such Proposers. The proposal review and selection process is as follows:

- 1) Step One Receipt of RFP's. RFP's from Proposers will be received at the location on the day and at the time indicated in this RFP.
- 2) Step Two Technical, Financial, and Anti-Discrimination Review. ASM GLOBAL will initially review and evaluate the Technical Submittals, Financial Documents, and Anti-Discrimination Responses. ASM GLOBAL may require all or some Proposers participate in an oral interview during this initial process. The general purpose of this session is to clarify specific aspects of the above submittals. Although the oral interview itself will not be a basis for award; responses provided in the interview will be considered. Absence of an interview does not indicate lack of interest in a proposal.
- 3) Step Three Shortlist. ASM GLOBAL will evaluate all proposals on the basis of technical merit and Anti-Discrimination response. ASM GLOBAL will evaluate whether the technical portion of the Proposal provides the details of the necessary technical and personnel support, and the manner in which it will fully implement and satisfy all requirements of the Project. ASM GLOBAL will also evaluate whether the Proposer's Anti-Discrimination Plan achieves minority and female participation in subcontracting and employment opportunities at substantial and meaningful levels and whether Proposer's satisfactorily demonstrated their best efforts as described in the Anti-Discrimination Policy. ASM GLOBAL will notify selected Proposers in writing of its selection for further consideration of their proposal.
- 4) Step Four Presentations of Shortlisted Proposers. Selected Proposers will be requested to participate in a meeting with ASM GLOBAL. The agenda will provide for a presentation by the Proposer a question and answer period. ASM GLOBAL does not require or expect the Proposers to provide elaborate presentations or add information beyond their initial proposal. ASM GLOBAL may request Proposers explain the basis of their cost/pricing for proposal.
- 5) Step Five Cost Review. ASM GLOBAL will review all the Shortlisted proposals and select the Proposers that it considers in its best interest. During the ASM GLOBAL deliberations, ASM GLOBAL may request further information from Proposers. Where similar Proposals come from several Proposers, ASM GLOBAL

may decide to engage in negotiations with only one, several or all Proposers submitting similar Proposals. The cost/price portion of the Proposal will be evaluated separately. It will be utilized to evaluate the Proposer's understanding of the requirements of the RFP and to determine the most probable cost. The cost/price portion will be evaluated for reasonableness and completeness. The Proposers' proposed total estimated cost/price shall not be controlling in the selection of the Proposer with which ASM GLOBAL will negotiate a contract for the services described in this RFP. ASM GLOBAL will evaluate the reasonableness of each Proposer's cost/price Proposal, determine whether the proposed cost/price is consistent with the proposed technical approach and indicates a clear understanding of a sound approach to satisfying the requirements in the scope of services set forth in Section.

- 6) Step Six Negotiation. ASM GLOBAL may undertake negotiations with several Proposers for similar or different Proposals. In either case, ASM GLOBAL may request "final and best offers". Based upon these negotiations, ASM GLOBAL will offer a "Notice of Award" to selected Proposer(s) for the services described herein.
- 7) Step Seven Award of Contract. Upon the completion of the negotiations ASM GLOBAL and the PCCA at their sole discretion may award Contracts for the services described herein.

5.3 Rights and Options of ASM GLOBAL

ASM GLOBAL reserves and may exercise one or more of the following rights and options with respect to this RFP:

- a) To reject any and all Proposals.
- b) To elect to award certain parts of the Scope of Services, to separate proposers or to award the entire Scope of Services to one proposer as ASM GLOBAL deems necessary.
- c) To use criteria other than price in determining the Proposer(s) with which it will contract.
- d) To supplement, amend or otherwise modify this RFP.
- e) To cancel this RFP with or without the substitution of another RFP.
- f) To issue additional or subsequent solicitations for Proposals.
- g) To conduct investigations with respect to the qualifications of any Proposer.
- h) To change any time for performance set forth in this RFP.
- i) To waive any non-compliance of any Proposal with the requirements of this RFP.
- j) To permit any Proposer to supplement, amend or otherwise modify its Proposal.
- k) To supplement, amend or otherwise modify the terms of any proposed form of Contract which may be submitted by ASM GLOBAL to any Proposer.
- 1) To negotiate an ECM with one or more than one Proposer.

5.4 Request for Additional Information

Proposers shall furnish such additional information as ASM GLOBAL may request in connection with its evaluation of the Proposals.

5.5 Acceptance or Rejection of Proposals

- a) ASM GLOBAL reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals and to seek additional Proposals, if such action is in the best interest of ASM GLOBAL and the PCCA. ASM GLOBAL reserves the right to waive any informalities and technicalities in the Proposal process.
- b) If for any reason whatsoever, ASM GLOBAL rejects a Proposal, the Proposer agrees that it will not seek to recover lost profits on work not performed nor will it seek to recover its Proposal preparation costs. By submitting its Proposal, the Proposer expressly states that it intends to be legally bound and accepts the limitation of remedies set forth in this Section.

5.6 Contract Award

a) After ASM GLOBAL has selected a Proposer as a result of the aforesaid evaluation process, the successful Proposer shall be required to execute a Contract with the PCCA. ASM GLOBAL reserves the right to modify, amend and supplement any proposed form of Contract submitted by ASM GLOBAL to any Proposer, in any manner it deems appropriate. The terms of the Proposal of the designated Proposer, to the extent accepted by ASM GLOBAL, shall be incorporated into the Contract. ASM GLOBAL and the PCCA reserve the

- right to revoke the designation of a Proposer as the designated Proposer at any time prior to execution of the Contract by the Proposer and the PCCA and in the form approved by the PCCA.
- b) The contents of the Proposal of the selected Proposer and the RFP will become contractual obligations upon execution of a contract; provided however, that the terms of any such contract shall supersede the provisions of the Proposal and the RFP to the extent the terms of the contract are inconsistent with the terms of the Proposal or RFP. In the event that either the designated Proposer does not execute the Contract as herein required or ASM GLOBAL has revoked the designation of a particular Proposer as the designated Proposer, ASM GLOBAL and the PCCA, may enter into negotiations with one or more of the other Proposers or may solicit new Proposals.
- c) At or prior to delivery of the signed Contract, the designated Proposer shall deliver to ASM GLOBAL the policies of insurance or insurance certificates as required by the Contract. All policies or certificates of insurance must be approved by ASM GLOBAL before the designated Proposer may proceed with the delivery of the contracted services.

6 MISCELLANEOUS

6.1 Penalty for Non-Compliance

Proposals received after submission deadline will be disqualified. Failure to comply with the requirements of this RFP may render the Proposal, at the sole discretion of ASM GLOBAL, as unresponsive or otherwise unacceptable and may result in disqualification and the elimination of the Proposer from subsequent consideration.

6.2 Handling of Proposals

All Proposals submitted in response to the RFP will become the property of ASM GLOBAL and will not be returned.

6.3 Cost Liability

ASM GLOBAL and the PCCA shall not, in any way, be responsible for any costs incurred by any Proposer in preparing, reproducing, distributing and presenting its Proposal.

6.4 Additional Clarification of Proposals

ASM GLOBAL may ask a Proposer to clarify in writing the technical or cost/price portions of the Proposer's Proposal at any time prior to the execution of a contract. Where permitted by this RFP, the Proposer must specifically identify and fully explain in the Proposal any exceptions to or deviations from the requirements of this RFP.

6.5 Compliance with Laws, Rules, Etc.

The Proposers shall comply with all federal, state, and local statutes, laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances.

6.6 Taxes

- d) PCCA is a tax-exempt entity not liable for sales tax. All price quotations for goods and services provided by the Proposer must therefore exclude sales tax charges. A tax-exempt certificate will be provided upon request.
- e) The designated Proposer shall be responsible for all taxes related to the provision of goods and services pursuant to the Contract and shall apply to the respective taxing authorities for all applicable account numbers and file appropriate tax returns as required by law.

7 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

7.1 GENERAL

- 1. Complete Contractor Safety Compliance Form information in accordance with OSHA 29 CFR General Industry Standards.
- 2. Maintain a high standard for housekeeping, cleanliness, recycling practices in accordance with building policy and where applicable use of green products.

7.2 INSURANCE

The successful contractor shall be required to obtain and maintain in force at all times during the term of the agreement as a direct cost of operation, insurance coverage as directed by the Center. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable insurance and fire prevention laws, rules, regulations and requirements of the Authority, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the City of Philadelphia, and of all legally constituted insurance authorities, including, without limitation, the Authority's risk management program, policies and procedures.

- a) At the time of the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor is to furnish and deposit with the Authority certificates of insurance respecting all required insurance coverages designated herein together with evidence that the premiums for such insurance have been paid. If the insurance coverage is provided under a master policy, the Contractor will provide information to the Authority's insurance consultant sufficient to confirm that the Contractor has the coverages required hereunder. At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any policy required under this Agreement, Contractor shall deliver to the Authority, a certificate of insurance evidencing the renewal of such policy, together with receipts for payment of the premiums required therefor. All coverages shall be issued by an insurance company authorized by law to carry on business in the State of Pennsylvania, and having an A.M. Best rating of A or better and/or which are otherwise acceptable to the Authority. Coverages are to include the following at the sole cost and expense of the Contractor.
- b) Commercial comprehensive general liability coverage with limits of liability of not less than the following for bodily injury and/or property damage and personal/advertising injury: \$1,000,000 each occurrence; \$2,000,000 general aggregate; \$1,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate; \$1,000,000 personal and advertising injury limit.
- c) Business automobile liability coverage shall be provided with limits of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and/or property damage. Coverage is to include all owned, hired and non-owned automobiles.
- d) Workers' compensation for Contractor's employees with Pennsylvania statutory limits and including employer's liability with limits as follows: bodily injury by accident \$500,000 each accident; bodily injury by disease -\$500,000 policy limit; bodily injury by disease -\$500,000 each employee.
- e) Umbrella excess liability coverage with limits of liability of not less than Five Million Dollars (\$5,000,000) each occurrence and in the aggregate, where applicable, excess of the liability limits in subparagraphs (b), (c) and (d) above.
- f) All-risk liability coverage with limits of liability of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) each occurrence and in the aggregate, where applicable, excess of the liability limits in subparagraphs (b), (c) and (d) above.
- g) Thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation, material reduction of coverage or non-renewal shall be given to the Authority.
- h) The Authority and the City of Philadelphia shall be named as additional insureds.
- i) The Contractor is responsible for and shall require all servicemen, deliverymen, and sub-contractors to provide to it, prior to the provision of any materials or services, certificates of insurance of their comprehensive general liability, automobile liability, and workers' compensation coverages as described above and with written notice of cancellation and waiver of subrogation in favor of the Contractor and the Authority. Also, the Contractor, and the Authority shall be named as additional insureds.
- j) Waiver of Subrogation Each of the parties hereto hereby releases the other and the other's partners, agents and employees, to the extent of each party's insurance coverage, from any and all liability for any loss or damage which may be inflicted upon the property of such party, even if such loss or damage shall

be brought about by the fault or negligence of the other party, its partners, agents or employees, provided, however, that this release shall be effective only with respect to loss or damage occurring during such time as the appropriate policy of insurance shall contain a clause to the effect that this release shall not affect said policy or the right of the insured to recover thereunder. If any policy of either party does not presently contain provisions which permit such a waiver, each party agrees to obtain an endorsement to its insurance policies permitting such waiver of subrogation.

7.3 INDEMNIFICATION

Indemnification: The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and save harmless ASM GLOBAL, PCCA, PCC, their Chairman, Members, Officers, and employees of, from, and against all claims, suits, judgments, expense, and costs of every kind and description, by reason of injury to persons or damage to property, resulting or alleged to result from any act or omission of the Contractor or his employees or agents, including, but not limited to expenses or claims related to environment contamination, injury or clean up.

7.4 LABOR

Vendor shall provide, at its own expense, qualified, union or licensed labor in the applicable trades. Vendor, at ASM GLOBAL's request, will remove or replace any employee at our discretion.

- a) All employees shall be employees of the Contractor and not of the Authority. The Contractor shall select, employ, train, furnish and deploy in the optimum number approved by the Authority, in each job classification, employees who are proficient, productive, and courteous, and the Contractor shall discipline, and if necessary, prohibit any and all personnel not performing in accordance with the standards of the Agreement from performing any services pursuant to the Agreement or on the Authority's property. The Contractor shall also provide adequately trained relief personnel in the event of absences.
- (b) The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the actions of all personnel while performing services pursuant to the Agreement, and shall be responsible for their supervision, daily direction and control.
- (c) The Contractor agrees to furnish all necessary qualified supervision for the performance of the Multi-Functional Copier Service and agrees to assign to the Convention Center a highly competent, full-time on-site working supervisor (the "Supervisor"), having a minimum of three (3) years' experience in supervising a work force under conditions similar to those required by the Agreement, who shall have no duties other than performing the services of the Contractor pursuant to the Agreement. The Authority reserves the right to interview the final candidate(s) for the position of Supervisor. The Contractor shall secure the Authority's written approval in advance as to the qualifications of the person selected by the Contractor as Supervisor and, once assigned to this operation, the Supervisor shall not be replaced without the approval of the Authority.

7.5 LICENSES AND LAWS

All licenses and/or permits will be provided by the vendor.

Vendor shall at all times observe and comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall indemnify, save and hold harmless, the PCCA, ASM GLOBAL and all of their officers, agents and employees against any and all claims or liability arising from or in connection with the violation of any such law, ordinance, rule or regulation, whether such violation is caused by Vendor, or its agents, employees, suppliers, or subcontractors.

8 SCOPE OF WORK

The Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority (PCCA) is soliciting proposals from qualified firms to provide telecommunications cabling, fiber installation, maintenance, and technical support services. This includes routine show support, on-site maintenance, and capital project assistance at the Pennsylvania Convention Center.

The selected vendor will provide comprehensive support related to data and voice cabling, fiber optics, and related IT infrastructure. Services will include ongoing support for events, facility operations, and oversight or execution of capital improvement projects as requested by the Authority.

8.1 On-Site Maintenance and Show Support

The selected vendor shall:

- a) Provide all labor to install, maintain, and repair voice and data cabling systems throughout the Convention Center
- b) Support the Authority's Administrative Telephone System, Contractor Telephone services, and associated cabling infrastructure.
- c) Install, operate, and maintain temporary and permanent cabling systems including but not limited to Cat5e, Cat6, and fiber optic cables for LAN and inter-building connections.
- d) Perform cable moves, adds, changes, and deletions as directed.
- e) Provide support for telephone systems and other special or conditioned access services.

8.2 Capital Project Support

On a project-by-project basis, the vendor may be requested to:

- a) Submit proposals for cabling and equipment installation related to specific capital improvement projects.
- b) Assist with scope definition, physical installation, and resource planning.
- c) Conduct post-installation testing and validation (e.g., continuity, cross-talk, impedance).
- d) Provide documentation as requested.

8.3 Technical Oversight / Owner's Representation

Upon request, the vendor may serve in a project oversight role, providing:

- a) Cost tracking, scope adherence, and quality assurance services.
- b) Reports to PCCA management regarding progress and compliance.
- c) Oversight of third-party contractors executing physical infrastructure work.

8.4 Emergency and After-Hours Response

The vendor must:

- a) Be available 24/7, 365 days a year for emergency or scheduled service as directed.
- b) Provide a 24-hour answering service and points of contact for urgent issues.
- c) Ensure availability of personnel to support after-hours, weekend, and holiday operations as needed.

8.5 Personnel Requirements

- a) All personnel must be fully trained and certified in the installation and maintenance of network and telecommunications systems.
- b) Staff must comply with PCCA's safety policies and all applicable laws and regulations.
- c) The vendor must provide replacement personnel in case of absences or scheduling needs.
- d) The vendor must provide its personnel with standard tools, materials and supplies in order to perform the service.

8.6 Incumbent Staff Transition and Retention

To ensure continuity of service, minimize operational disruption, and retain critical institutional knowledge, the Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority (PCCA) places high importance on the transition of existing staff currently employed by the incumbent vendor.

The selected vendor shall:

- a) Transition Planning: Work cooperatively with the incumbent vendor and PCCA to develop and implement a comprehensive transition plan that includes the identification and evaluation of current staff for potential employment.
- b) Staff Retention: Give first consideration to qualified incumbent staff for employment opportunities under the new contract, subject to the vendor's standard hiring policies and applicable employment laws.
- c) Knowledge Transfer: Participate in knowledge transfer sessions with incumbent staff and management to ensure the preservation of site-specific expertise, historical context, and best practices.
- d) *Communication:* Maintain open and transparent communication with incumbent staff regarding employment opportunities, timelines, and any changes to roles or responsibilities.
- e) Reporting: Provide periodic updates to PCCA on the status of staff transition efforts, including the number of incumbent staff offered positions, accepted offers, and any anticipated gaps in staffing or knowledge.

Note:

The Authority encourages proposals that demonstrate a commitment to staff retention and a clear strategy for leveraging the experience and expertise of incumbent personnel.

8.7 Quality Assurance

- a) All installations must comply with industry standards, including applicable ANSI/TIA/EIA and NEC codes.
- b) Vendor shall warrant installations for a minimum of one (1) year for workmanship and cabling failures not caused by external damage or misuse.
- c) Testing and documentation must be submitted to PCCA for all work performed.

8.8 Site Requirements

- a) Vendor must comply with all fire and safety codes, including proper fire-stopping methods.
- b) Secure and adequate storage for equipment and materials will be provided by PCCA.
- c) Full and unrestricted access to work areas will be granted during all hours.

8.9 Warranty and Service Commitment

- a) All workmanship and installation are to be warranted for one (1) year.
- b) Excluded under warranty is repair for damage to the cable from accident, negligence, misuse, unauthorized repairs, failure of electrical power, sprinkler or humidity control or vandalism, fire, storm, water damage, water damage in conduits/manholes or other casualties not relating to the installation and beyond the control of the vendor.

8.10 Exclusions

The following are outside the scope of the vendor's responsibility:

- a) Provision and installation of power poles, poke-through devices, or conduit unless specified.
- b) Cable tray grounding (unless explicitly requested).
- c) Installation of cabling through non-customer/public-owned spaces without explicit direction.

8.11 Compensation Structure

Vendors must submit a rate schedule by labor classification, including:

- a) Straight-time hourly rate (weekday 8:00AM 4:30PM).
- b) Overtime hourly rate (outside of standard hours).
- c) All overtime must be pre-approved by PCCA.
- d) Billing must be submitted monthly, with payment terms net 30 days upon receipt of a valid invoice.

Example:

Job Classification	Straight Time Rate	Overtime Rate
Cable Installer/Technician (Local 98)	\$XXX.XX/hour	\$XXX.XX/hour
Sr. Technician (Local 98)	\$XXX.XX/hour	\$XXX.XX/hour
Field Supervisor	\$XXX.XX/hour	\$XXX.XX/hour
Project Manager	\$XXX.XX/hour	\$XXX.XX/hour

8.12 Proposal Requirements

Vendors must include the following in their proposal:

- a) Company profile and experience with similar projects
- b) Detailed rate schedule
- c) Response plan for 24/7 availability
- d) Staffing plan and qualifications
- e) References from similar engagements
- f) Insurance and compliance certifications

8.13 Service Level Expectations and Performance Metrics

To ensure high-quality service delivery and operational reliability, the selected vendor shall adhere to the following performance metrics and service level expectations (SLAs). These metrics will form the basis for evaluating vendor performance throughout the term of the agreement:

8.13.1 Response Times

- a) **Urgent/Emergency Service Requests:** Vendor must acknowledge receipt within **30 minutes** and provide onsite response within **2 hours**, 24/7.
- b) **Standard Service Requests:** For routine service calls or scheduled work, vendor must respond within **1 business day** and perform work within **2 business days**, unless otherwise scheduled by the Authority.

8.13.2 Work Completion Timelines

- a) Routine Cabling and Moves/Adds/Changes: Completion within 2 business days of request approval.
- b) **Project-Based Work:** Completion per project timeline agreed upon during project initiation, with milestone updates provided weekly or as requested by PCCA.

8.13.3 Installation Quality

- a) At least **99% of installations** must pass all required tests (e.g., continuity, impedance, crosstalk) on the first attempt.
- b) Vendor must provide documentation of testing results for all installations and repairs.

8.13.4 Uptime and Reliability

a) All installed infrastructure must maintain **99.9% uptime** during the warranty period, excluding outages caused by external factors or force majeure events.

8.13.5 Reporting and Communication

- a) Vendor must submit a **monthly performance summary** including:
 - Completed work orders and timelines
 - Response and resolution times
 - Any service disruptions or exceptions
- b) Vendor shall participate in quarterly performance review meetings with PCCA's Technology IT team.

8.13.6 Corrective Action

a) If vendor performance falls below SLA thresholds, PCCA reserves the right to request a **Corrective Action Plan** within 10 business days.

b)	Continued failure to meet agreed performance metrics may be considered grounds for contract review or termination.